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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE BRANCH

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch (the “Branch”), a branch of Bank of China Ltd.,
was established in Lao PDR and operates under Banking License No. 01/BOL granted by Bank of the
Lac PDR (“the BOL”) on 13 January 2020.

The initial registered capital of the Branch is LAK 405,100,000,000. The actual paid-up capital as at
31 December 2024 is LAK 405,100,000,000 (31 December 2023: LAK 405,100,000,000).

The principal activities of the Branch are to mobilize capital and provide loans for improving and
strengthening the Lao economy.

The Branch is located at Building Vientiane Center, Khouvieng Road, Ban Nongchanh, Sisattanak
District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.
GENERAL MANAGER AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Branch during the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the date
of these financial statements is Mrs. Li Shuping, the General Manager.

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Branch is Ernst & Young Lao Co., Ltd



Ernst & Young Lao Co., Ltd Tel: +856 21 455 077
6th floor, Kolao Tower |, 23 Singha Road Fax: +856 21 455 078
Nongbone Village, Saysettha District ey.com

e Vientiane Capital, Lao P.D.R.
Building a better
working world

Reference: 11729910/68640823-IFRS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Owners of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch (“the
Branch”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Branch as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Branch in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Lao PDR
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Branch for the year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 29 March 2024.

Responsibilities of the Branch’s Management for the Financial Statements

The Branch’s management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Accounting Law of Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to
preparation and presentation of financial statements, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Branch’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Branch or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report thatincludes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Branch'’s internal control.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Branch’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Branch to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Audit Practising Registration
Certificate No. 018/LCPAA-APT-2019

Vientiane, Lao PDR
30 May 2025
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Interest revenue calculated using the effective
interest method
Interest expense calculated using the effective
interest method

Net interest and similar income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense

Net fees and commission income

Net gain from dealing in foreign currencies
Total operating income

Credit loss (charged)/reversed

NET OPERATING INCOME

Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Other operating expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
Net monetary position gain/(loss)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit tax expense
Deferred tax expense/income

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Prepared by:

il

Mr. Zhou Junfu
Financial Management and
Operation Service Unit Manager

Vientiane, Lao PDR

30 May 2025

2024 2023

Notes LAKm LAKm
8 716,524 731,755
9 (282,818) (304,689)
433,706 427,066

10 28,527 34,889
10 (5,091) (2,873)
23,436 32,016

11 187,627 289,014
644,769 748,096

12 (14,399) 109,488
630,370 857,584

13 (72,492) (76,324)
20 (6,427) (6,719)
14 (39,244) (30,847)
(118,163) (113,890)

(339,656) (461,328)

172,551 282,366

24.2 (98,162) (136,959)
24.3 738 (623)
75,127 144,784
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Notes LAKm LAKm
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF
TAX a .
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT FOR THE
75,127 144,784

YEAR, NET OF TAX

Prepared by:

/'7;\4& ZY

Mr. Zhou Junyu
Financial Management and
Operation Service Unit Manager

Vientiane, Lao PDR

30 May 2025




Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with the BOL with Bank of the

Lao PDR

Due from banks

Debt instrument at amortized cost

Loans to customers

Loan to parent bank

Property, equipment and Right-of -of-use assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to banks

Due to customers
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Paid up capital

Adjustment to Paid-up capital in relation to IAS 29
Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve - restate IAS 29

Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Prepared by:

1’35\4@%

Mr. Zhou Junyu
Financial Management and
Operation Service Unit Manager

Vientiane, Lao PDR

30 May 2025

Notes

15
16

18
19
20
24.3
21

22
23
24.2
24.3
25

26

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKmM
7,239,207 8,071,885
529,711 1,704,432
163,917 37,204
4,639,765 2,562,212
3,747,292 5,579,323
9,470 8,869

684 346

1,787 1,152
16,331,833 17,965,423
1,265,944 3,075,230
12,759,302 12,572,270
33,488 20,215

185 626

37,807 137,102
14,096,726 15,805,443
405,100 405,100
400,206 400,206
183,301 144,507
90,060 90,060
1,156,440 1,120,107
2,235,107 2,159,980
16,331,833 17,965,423
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization charges 20.1
Credit loss expenses/(reversal) 12
Foreign exchange gains arising from revaluation of
monetary accounts denominated in foreign
currencies
Interest income 8
Interest expense 9
Effect in relation with IAS 29
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Balances with the BOL
Due from banks
Loans to customers
Loans to parent company
Other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to banks

Due to customers

Other liabilities

Profit tax paid during the year 242
Net cash flows from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from maturity of debt instruments
measured at amortised cost

Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing
activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of inflation on cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
172,551 282,366
6,427 6,719
14,399 (109,488)
(175,480) (267,085)
(716,524) (731,755)
282,818 304,689
482,168 462,154
(368,333) (1,221,878)
928,695 481,535
(2,190,080) (364,131)
1,004,815 555,772
(802) (1,420)
(1,390,187) 1,145,550
1,961,926 980,076
(149,317) 188,557
(81,972) (134,621)
(218,896) 1,577,040
(7,028) (3,850)
(132,000) (19,867)
727,744 645,252
588,716 621,535
(224,268) (202,235)
(224,268) (202,235)
145,552 1,996,340
(444,977) 190,985
2,637,842 895,494
3,082,819

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 27 ,—._ 2,338,417

Prepared by: /Y ;
- /E):‘.':r.:fu.'qrﬁol 'g
’I/"v“l‘f-l A
@l 4«?% "

Mr. Zhou Junyu
Financial Management and
Operation Service Unit Manager

Vientiane, Lao PDR
30 May 2025
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Establishment and operations
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch (the “Branch”), a branch of Bank of China

Ltd., was established in Lao PDR and operates under Banking License No. 01/BOL granted
by Bank of the Lao PDR (“the BOL") on 13 January 2020.

The principal activities of the Branch are to mobilize capital and provide loans for improving
and strengthening the Lao economy.

Paid-up capital

The initial registered capital of the Branch is LAK 405,100,000,000. The actual paid-up capital
as at 31 December 2024 is LAK 405,100,000,000.

General Manager

The Branch’s General Manger during year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the date of
these financial statements is Mrs. Li Shuping.

Location

The Branch is located at Building Vientiane Center, Khouvieng Road, Ban Nongchanh,
Sisattanak District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Employees

Total employees of the Branch as at 31 December 2024 were 67 people (31 December 2023:
65 people)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed
in other notes.

The Branch maintains its accounting records in Lao Kip (“LAK") which is the Branch’s
functional currency and presents its financial statements in millions of Lao Kip (“LAKm”).
Except otherwise stated, financial information presented in LAK has been rounded to the
nearest million.

The Branch'’s fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continue})
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Correction of financial statements during the hyperinflationary periods

In November 2024, the International Practice Task Force of the Centre for Audit Quality, which
monitors countries experiencing high inflation, categorized Lao PDR as a country with
projected 36 months’ cumulative inflation rate greater than 100% as of September 2024.
Therefore, the Branch applies IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies in
preparation and presentation of its financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
which are prepared in Lao KIP, the currency of Lao PDR a hyperinflationary economy.

Accordingly, prior period financial statements are also presented in the current measurement
unit at the end of the reporting period for comparative purposes. The Branch has therefore
presented its financial statements as at 31 December 2023, on the purchasing power basis
as of 31 December 2024.

The adjustments made in accordance with IAS 29 were made using the adjustment coefficient
obtained from the Consumer Price Index (CPI) of Lao PDR published by the Lao Statistics
Bureau (LSB). As of December 31, 2024, the indices and adjustment coefficients used in the
adjustment of the financial statements are as follows:

The table below shows the evolution of CPI in the last three years and as of 31 December

2024:
Year End Index Index (%) Conversion Factor
2021 120.30 5.27 1.0527
2022 167.54 22.96 1.3927
2023 208.37 24.37 1.2439
2024 243.50 16.90 1.1684

Assets and liabilities were separated into those that were monetary and non—-monetary, with
non— monetary items were further divided into those measured on either a current or historical
basis to perform the required restatement of financial statements under IAS 29. Monetary
items (other than index -linked monetary items) and non-monetary items carried at amounts
current at the end of the reporting period were not restated because they are already
expressed in terms of measuring unit as of 31 December 2024. Nonmonetary items which are
not expressed in terms of measuring unit as of 31 December 2024 were restated by applying
the conversion factors. The restated amount of a non-monetary item was reduced, in
accordance with appropriate IFRSs, in cases where it exceeds its recoverable amount or net
realizable value. Components of shareholders’ equity in the statement of financial position
and all items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have also
been restated by applying the conversion factors.

The application of IAS 29 results in an adjustment for the loss of purchasing power of the Lao
KIP presented in Net Monetary Position Gain/(Loss) item in the profit or loss section of the
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income. In a period of inflation, an entity holding
an excess of monetary assets over monetary liabilities loses purchasing power and an entity
with an excess of monetary liabilities over monetary assets gains purchasing power to the
extent the assets and liabilities are not linked to a price level. This gain or loss on the net
monetary position is derived as the difference resulting from the restatement of non-monetary
items, owners’ equity and items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and the adjustment of index linked assets and liabilities.

10



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, in the first reporting period in which IAS 29 is applied, the requirements of the
Standard are applied as if the economy had always been hyperinflationary. Therefore, the
statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest comparative period, i.e as of 1
January 2023, was restated as the base of all subsequent reporting. Restated retained
earnings/losses in the statement of financial position as of 1 January 2023 was derived as
balancing figure in the restated statement of financial position.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements of the Branch have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the IASB.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATMENTS

The Branch presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the statement of financial position. They
are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event,
the parties also intend to settle on a net basic in all of the following circumstances:

» The normal course of business
» The event of default

» The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Branch and/or its counterparties

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IAS 29

The financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2024 are the first-time financial
statements the Branch has prepared in accordance with IAS 29. It has complied with the
presentation and disclosures required by IAS 29 — Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economics of International Accounting Standards.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the spot rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated into LAK at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date (see list of exchange
rates of applicable foreign currencies against LAK on 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023 as presented in Note 36). Unrealized exchange differences arising from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities on the balance date are recognized in the income statement.

11



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recognition of interest income
Effective Interest Rate method

Under IFRS 9, interest income is recorded using the EIR method for all financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Interest expense is also calculated using the EIR method for all
financial liabilities held at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into
account transaction costs and any discount or premium on the acquisition of the financial
asset, as well as fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Branch recognises
interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, the EIR calculation also takes into account
the effect of potentially different interest rates that may be charged at various stages of the
financial asset's expected life, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations of fixed rate financial assets’ or liabilities’ cash flows are revised for reasons
other than credit risk, then changes to future contractual cash flows are discounted at the
original EIR with a consequential adjustment to the carrying amount. The difference from the
previous carrying amount is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial asset or liability on the balance sheet with a corresponding increase
or decrease in Interest revenue/expense calculated using the effective interest method.

When the Branch revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the
respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted
using the original EIR. Any changes are recognised in the income statement.

Interest and similar income/expense

Net interest income comprises interest income and interest expense calculated using the
effective interest method and other methods. These are disclosed separately on the face of
the income statement for both interest income and interest expense to provide symmetrical
and comparable information.

Inits Interest income/expense calculated using the effective interest method, the Branch only
includes interest on those financial instruments that are set out in Note 6.2.1 above.

The Branch calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-
impaired, by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest
expense is also calculated using the EIR method for all financial liabilities held at amortised cost.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired (as set out in Note 6.10.1 and is therefore
regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Branch calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the net
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures (as outlined in Note 6.10.1)
and is no longer credit-impaired, the Branch reverts to calculating interest income on a gross
basis.

12



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fee and commission income

The Branch earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of financial services it
provides to its customers. Fee and commission income is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Branch expects to be entitled in exchange for providing
the services.

The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction, are identified, and
determined, at the inception of the contract. The Branch’s revenue contracts do not typically
include multiple performance obligations, as explained further in Note 6.3.1 and Note 6.3.2
below.

When the Branch provides a service to its customers, consideration is invoiced and generally
due immediately upon satisfaction of a service provided at a point in time or at the end of the
contract period for a service provided over time (unless otherwise specified in Note 6.3.1 and
Note 6.3.2 below).

The Branch has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 6.3.3.

Fee and commission income from services where performance obligations are satisfied over
time

Performance obligations satisfied over time include services where the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Branch’s performance
as the Branch performs.

The Branch’s fee and commission income from services where performance obligations are
satisfied over time include loan commitment fees: These are fixed annual fees paid by
customers for loan and other credit facilities with the Branch, but where it is unlikely that a
specific lending arrangement will be entered into with the customer and the loan commitment
is not measured at fair value. The Branch promises to provide a loan facility for a specified
period. As the benefit of the services is transferred to the customer evenly over the period of
entittement, the fees are recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis. Payment of the fees
is due and received monthly in arrears.

Fee and commission income from services where performance obligations are satisfied at a
point in time

Services provided where the Branch’s performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time
are recognised once control of the services is transferred to the customer. This is typically on
completion of the underlying transaction or service or, for fees or components of fees that are
linked to a certain performance, after fulfilling the corresponding performance criteria. These
include fees and commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a
transaction for a third party, such as the arrangement/participation or negotiation of the
acquisition of shares or other securities, or the purchase or sale of businesses, brokerage
and underwriting fees.

The Branch typically has a single performance obligation with respect to these services, which
is to successfully complete the transaction specified in the contract.

13



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.3.3

6.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract balances

The following are recognised in the statement of financial position arising from revenue from
contracts with customers:

> ' ‘Fees and commissions receivables’ included under ‘Other assets’, which represent the
Branch'’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). These are measured at
amortised cost and subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9.

» ‘Unearned fees and commissions’ included under ‘Other liabilities’, which represent the
Branch's obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Branch has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. A liability for
unearned fees and commissions is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Unearned fees and commissions are recognised as revenue
when (or as) the Branch performs.

Net trading income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related
interest income or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading (if any).

Financial instruments - initial recognition.
Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans to customers and balances due to
customers, are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Branch becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular way trades” -
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans to customers are
recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Branch recognises
balances due to customers when funds are transferred to the Branch.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual
terms and the business model for managing the instruments, as described in Notes 6.7.1.1
and Note 6.7.1.2. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value (as defined in
Note 6.6), except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL,
transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Financial receivables are
measured at the transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Branch account for the Day 1 profit or loss,
as described below.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Branch recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the
fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.5.4

6.6

6.7

6.7.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Branch classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at amortised cost, as explained in Note
6.7.1.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at
amortised cost.

Determination of fair value

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based
on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

» Level 1 financial instruments — Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Branch accesses to at the measurement date. The Branch considers markets as active
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the
identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available at the reporting date.

» Level 2 financial instruments — Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available
over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive
markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield
curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required
for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are
comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Branch will
classify the instruments as Level 3.

» Level 3 financial instruments — Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.

The Branch evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassify instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting
period.

Financial assets and liabilities
Due from banks, Loans to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost

The Branch measures Due from banks, Loans to customers and other financial investments
at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year then ended 31 December 2024

6.7.1.1

6.7.1.2

6.7.2

6.7.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business model assessment

The Branch determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective:

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed,;

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collected)

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Branch’s original expectations,
the Branch does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in
that business model, but incorporate such information when assessing newly originated
or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Branch assesses the contractual terms of
financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the
Branch applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the
financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do
not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Debt issued and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on issued funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Branch included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of premises and
IT equipment due to the significance of these assets to its operations.

Financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments

The Branch issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitments. Financial
guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value,
being the premium received. The premium received is recognised in the income statement in
“Net fee and commission income” on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the
duration of the commitment, the Branch is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms
to the customer. Similar to financial guarantee contracts, these contracts are in the scope of
the ECL requirements.
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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6.7

6.7.3

6.8.

6.9.

6.9.1

6.9.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn Joan commitments (continued)

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan
commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on
in the statement of financial position. The nominal values of these instruments together with
the corresponding ECLs are disclosed in Note 25.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Branch does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Branch acquires, disposes of, or terminates
a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Branch derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new
loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as
Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be POCI.

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the
Branch considers the following factors:

Change in currency of the loan

v

Introduction of an equity feature

» Change in counterparty

» If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original

EIR, the Branch records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

Derecognition other than for substantial modification

6.9.2.1 Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired. The Branch also derecognises the assets if they have both transferred the asset, and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Branch has transferred the asset if, and only if, either:
» The Branch has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or

» lt retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass—through”
arrangement.
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6.

6.9.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

6.9.2 Derecognition other than for substantial modification (continued)

6.9.2.1 Financial assets

Pass-through arrangements are transactions when the Branch retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all
of the following three conditions are met:

» The Branch has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances by
the entity with the right of full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market
rates;

» The Branch cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients for the obligation to pay them cash flows; and

» The Branch has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Branch are not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents during the short settlement period from
the collection date to the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients, and
interest earned on such investments is passed to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

» The Branch has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

The Branch has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Branch considers control to be transferred if, and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Branch has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to
the extent of the Branch’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Branch also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Branch has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Branch could be required to repay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the
transferred asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the value the Branch would be
required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option on an asset that is
measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower
of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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6.

6.9.

6.9.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition other than for substantial modification (continued)

6.9.2.2 Financial liabilities

6.10.

6.10.1.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Branch records the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt
financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit
loss as outlined in Note 6.10.2. The Branch’s policies for determining if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk are set out in Note 30.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of life time ECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Both life time ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Branch has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. This is further explained in Note 30.

Based on the above process, the Branch groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and
POCI, as described below:
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6.10.

6.10.1.

6.10.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Overview of the ECL principles (continued)

» Stage1 When loans are first recognised, the Branch recognises an allowance based on
12-month ECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

» Stage2 When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Branch records an allowance for the life time ECLs. Stage 2 loans also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

» Stage 3 Loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 30). The Branch records
an allowance for the life time ECLs.

» POCI Purchased or originated credit impaired (“POCI") assets are financial assets
that are credit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair
value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognised
based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or released to the
extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Branch has no reasonable expectations of recovering either
the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

The calculation of ECLs

The Branch calculates ECLs based on three probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Branch expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculations
are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

» Probability The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
of Default given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
("PD") assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is

still in the portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in Note 30.

» Exposure  The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
at Default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
(“EAD") reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether

scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD is further
explained in Note 30.

» Loss The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
Given a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
Default contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
(“LGD") receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually

expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained in
Note 30.

When estimating the ECLs, the Branch considers three scenarios (base case, upper, and
downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs. When relevant,
the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how individually significant loans are
expected to be recovered, including the probability that the loans will make repayment timely
and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset.
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6.10.

6.10.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The calculation of ECLs (continued)

Impairment loses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying

amount.

Allowance for ECLs for undrawn loan commitments are assessed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

» Stage 1

» Stage2

» Stage3

» POCI

» Loan
commit-
ments
and letter
of credit

» Financial
guarantee
contracts

The 12-month ECL is calculated as the portion of life time ECLs that represent
the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Branch calculates
the 12-month ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring
in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month
default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. This
calculation is made for each of the three scenarios, as explained above.

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Branch record an allowance for the life time ECLs. The mechanics are similar to
those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs
are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

For loans considered credit-impaired, the Branch recognise the lifetime
expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage
2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
The Branch only recognise the cumulative changes in life time ECLs since
initial recognition, based on a probability-weighting of the three scenarios,
discounted by the credit adjusted EIR.

When estimating life time ECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Branch
estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down
over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the
expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a
probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For loan commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is recognised within
Provision for off-balance sheet commitments under “Other liabilities”.

The Branch’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortization recognised in the
income statement, and the ECL allowance. For this purpose, the Branch
estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are
discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the exposure. The
calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The
ECLs related to financial guarantee contracts are recognised within Provision
for off-balance sheet commitments under “Other liabilities”.
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6.70.

6.10.3.

6.10.4.

6.11

6.12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI)

For POCI financial assets, the Branch only recognises the cumulative changes in life time
ECL since initial recognition in the loss allowance.

Forward-looking information

In its ECL models, the Branch relies on a broad range of forward looking information as
economic inputs, such as:

» GDP growth
» Unemployment rates
» Inflation
»

House price indices

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics
of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or
overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are
significantly material.

Credit enhancements: collateral valuation and financial guarantees

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Branch seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded
on the Branch’s statement of financial position.

Cash flows expected from credit enhancements which are not required to be recognised
separately by IFRS standards and which are considered integral to the contractual terms of a
debt instrument which is subject to ECL, are included in the measurement of those ECL. On
this basis, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. Collateral is generally
assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some
collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Branch uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data
provided by third parties such as mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Collateral repossessed

The Branch’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal
operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed
value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined
to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets)
and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date in, line with
the Branch'’s policy.
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6.13

6.14

6.15

6.15.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Branch has no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. If the
amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount.
Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit loss expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on
hand, non-restricted current accounts with the BOL and amounts due from banks on demand
or with an original maturity of three months or less.

Leases

The Branch assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Branch as a leasee

The Branch applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Branch recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Branch recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are presented within Note 20 Property, equipment and right-of-use

assets and are subject to impairment in line with the Branch'’s policy as described in Note 6.17
Impairment of non-financial assets.
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6.15

6.15.1

6.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Branch as a lease (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Branch recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable), variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Branch and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate,
and treated as changes in accounting estimates. Right-of-use assets are presented together
with property and equipment in the statement of financial position — refer to the accounting
policy in Note 6.15. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The following are
annual rates used:

Building improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calcuiated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in ‘Other operating income' in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognized.
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6.17

6.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Branch assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Branch estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit (CGU)’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value
indicators.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Branch estimates the asset’'s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the income statement.

Employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Branch by the Social Security
Fund Department which belongs to the Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare. The Branch is
required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium
to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 6.00% of employee’s basic salary on a monthly
basis. The Branch has no further obligation concerning post-employment benefits for its
employees other than this.

Termination benefits

In accordance with Article 82 of the Amended Labour Law No. 43/NA approved by the
President of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic on 28 January 2014, the Branch has the
obligation to pay allowance for employees who are terminated by dismissal in the following
cases:

» The worker lacks specialised skills or is not in good health and thus cannot continue to
work;

» The employer considers it necessary to reduce the number of workers in order to improve
the work within the labour unit.

For the termination of an employment contract on any of the above-mentioned grounds, the
employer must pay a termination allowance which is calculated on the basis of 10% of the
last salary or wage multiplied by the total number of months worked. As at 31 December 2024,
there is no employee of the Branch who was dismissed under the above-mentioned grounds;
therefore the Branch has not made a provision for termination allowance in the financial
statements.
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6.19

6.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Branch has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as aresult of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Branch
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate
reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement in other operating expenses.

Profit tax
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date in the countries where the Branch operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and
not in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it becomes probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax benefits or expenses in the income
statement except for tax related to the fair value remeasurement of available-for-sale assets,
foreign exchange differences and the net movement on cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited to OCI. These exceptions are subsequently reclassified from OCI to the income
statement together with the respective deferred loss or gain. The Branch also recognises the
tax consequences of payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are
classified as equity, directly in equity.

The Branch only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both a legal
right to offset and it is the Branch’s intention to settle on a net basis.
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6.

6.21

6.21.1.

6.21.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and amended standards
International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD’s BEPS Pillar
Two rules and include:

» A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes
arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules; and

» Disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that
legislation, particularly before its effective date.

In periods in which Pillar Two legislation is (substantively) enacted but not yet effective, the
amendment requires disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information that helps
users of financial statements understand the entity’s exposure arising from Pillar Two income
taxes including both qualitative and quantitative information about its exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes at the end of the reporting period. For example:

a) Qualitative information such as how an entity is affected by Pillar Two legislation and the
main jurisdictions in which exposures to Pillar Two income taxes might exist, and

b) Quantitative information such as:

» An indication of the proportion of an entity’s profits that might be subject to Pillar Two
income taxes and the average effective tax rate applicable to those profits; or

» An indication of how the entity’s overall effective tax rate would have changed if Pillar
Two legislation had been effective.

Once the legislation is effective, additional disclosures are required for the current tax
expense related to Pillar Two income taxes. The requirements apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, but not for any interim periods ending on or
before 31 December 2024.

The Branch has reviewed its corporate structure in light of the introduction of Pillar Two Model!
Rules in the various jurisdictions in which it operates. The Branch has determined that it will
not be subject to Pillar Two taxes once the legislation becomes effective since its effective tax
rate is above 15% in all the jurisdictions in which it operates. Therefore, as the related Pillar
Two disclosures are not required, the amendments will have no impact on the Branch’s
financial statements at 31 December 2024.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting
policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures
that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and
adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Branch’s disclosures of accounting policies, but

not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Branch’s financial
statements.
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6.22

7.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective

New and amended standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective will not
have a material impact on the Branch’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Branch’s financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Branch’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to
circumstances beyond the Branch’s control and are reflected in the assumptions if and when
they occur. Items with the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements with substantial management judgement and/or estimates are collated below with
respect to judgements/estimates involved.

Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets
in scope requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances. The Branch’s ECL calculations
are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice
of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

» The Branch’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades

» The Branch'’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the
qualitative assessment

» The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

» Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and
LGDs

» Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It has been the Branch’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

28



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Going concern

The Branch’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Branch’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about
determination of fair value, please see Note 6.6 and Note 33.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Branch’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 6.2.1, recognises interest income using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans and deposits and recognises the effect of potentially different interest
rates charged at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by nature, requires an
element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Branch operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in Lao PDR, arising in the ordinary
course of the Branch’s business.

When the Branch can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a
specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Branch records a provision
against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable,
but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. However, when the
Branch is of the opinion that disclosing these estimates on a case-by-case basis would
prejudice their outcome, then the Branch does not include detailed, case-specific disclosers
in its financial statements. Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability
and amount of losses, the Branch takes into account a number of factors including legal
advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant
judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.
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7.6

7.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination options
(Branch as a lessee)

The Branch determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Branch has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Branch applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Branch reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Branch cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Branch would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Branch ‘would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do
not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency).The Branch estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific adjustments.
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8. INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Interest revenue calculated using the effective
interest method from:
Interbank transactions 531,198 558,629
Loans to customers 183,096 170,211
Held-to-maturity securities 2,230 2,915
716,524 731,755
9. INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE
2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Interest expense calculated using the effective
interest method for:
Interbank transactions (43,910) (98,101)
Customer deposits (238,908) (206,588)
(282,818) (304,689)
10. NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Fees and commission income:
Settlement activities 11,485 8,775
Cradit service 3,108 2,242
Other services 13,934 23,872
28,527 34,889
Fees and commission expense for:
Financial enterprise fee (3,885) (2,643)
Clearing fee payable to central bank (108) (117)
Membership fee (1,098) (113)
(5,091) (2,873)
Net fee and commission income 23,436 32,016
1. NET GAIN FROM DEALING IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Net gain from foreign exchange spot rate
differences 51,500 31,929
Net gain from revaluation of monetary items 136,127 257,085
187,627 289,014
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12.

13.

CREDIT LOSS INCOME AND EXPENSE

The table below shows the ECL reversal on financial instruments under IFRS 9 for the year

ended 31 December 2024

Stage 1
Collective Total
Note LAKm LAKm
Cash and balance with the BOL 15 (252) (252)
Due from banks 16 - -
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 17 27 27
Loans to customers 18 27,323 27,323
Loans to parent bank 19 67) (67)
Off-balance sheet items 25 (9,388) (9,388)
Monetary gain/(loss) (3,244) (3,244)
14,399 14,399

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments under IFRS 9 for the year

ended 31 December 2023:

Stage 1
Collective Total
LAKm LAKm
Cash and balance with the BOL 204 204
Due from banks - -
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 3 3
Loans to customers (84,288) (84,288)
Loans to parent bank (320) (320)
Off-balance sheet items (1,677) (1,677)
Monetary gain/(loss) (23,410) (23,410)
(109,488) (109,488)

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Wages and allowances 68,672 73,772
Other staff costs 3,820 2,652
72,492 76,324
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14,

15.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Rental 595 573
External services 1,258 792
Repair and maintenance 1,474 1,523
Publication, marketing and promotion 4,006 224
Telecommunication 3,137 3,387
Training, meeting and seminar 6,140 6,683
Electricity and water 2,484 2,694
Insurance fee for depositor protection fund 10,468 10,418
Others 9,682 4,553
39,244 30,847

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF THE LAO PDR (“the BOL”)
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Cash on hand 52,887 120,956
52,887 120,956

Balances with the BOL

- Demand deposit 1,755,823 1,257,443
- Term deposit (*) 5,412,383 5,667,742
- Compulsory deposits (**) 20,108 1,027,461
- Registered capital deposit (**) 5 6
7,188,319 7,952,652
Allowance for expected credit losses (1,999) (1,723)
7,239,207 8,071,885

"

)

(***)

The term deposits at the BOL have terms ranging from 3 months to 5 years and earn
interest at the fixed rates ranging from 6.33% to 11.54% per annum.

Under regulations of the BOL, the Branch is required to maintain certain cash reserves
with the BOL in the form of compulsory deposits, which are computed at 8.00% for LAK
and 11.00% for foreign currencies (2023: 8.00% for LAK and 10.00% for foreign
currencies), on a bi-monthly basis, of customer deposits having original maturities of
less than 12 months. During the year, the Branch maintained its compulsory deposits
in compliance with the requirements of the BOL.

According to Decision No. 721/BOL dated 22 September 2022, which was effective
from 22 September 2022, commercial banks are required to maintain a positive balance
at the BOL in the form of special deposit. The Branch was then approved by the BOL
in Official Letter No. 201/BSD dated 03 April 2024, Official Letter No. 645/BSD dated
05 June 2023, Official Letter No. 176/BSD dated 18 March 2022, Official Letter No.
388/BSD dated 05 July 2021 and Official Letter No. 677/BSD dated 13 November 2020
to withdraw from this deposit account to supplement its working capital.
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15.

16.

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF THE LAO PDR (“the BOL”)

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch’s internal stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment
allowances. Details of the Branch'’s internal grading system are explained in Note 30.

Performing

31/12/2024
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm

31/12/2023
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm

7,188,319

7,952,652

7,188,319

7,952,652

A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024

New assets originated or purchased
Payments and assets derecognised
Accrued interest

Foreign exchange adjustment

Monetary gain/(loss)
As at 31 December 2024

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024
Credit loss expense
Foreign exchange adjustment

Monetary gain/(loss)
As at 31 December 2024

DUE FROM BANKS

Demand deposits at domestic banks
Demand deposits at foreign banks
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31/12/2024
LAKm

Stage 1
Collective
LAKm

7,952,652
1,090,536
(1,140,350)
74,383
358,994
(1,147,896)

7,188,319

Stage 1
Collective
LAKm

1,723
(252)

777
(249)

1,999

31/12/2023
LAKm

30,747
498,964

27,961
1,676,471

529,711

1,704,432
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16.

17.

DUE FROM BANKS (continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch’s internal credit rating system and stage classification. The amounts presented are
gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Branch'’s internal grading system are explained

in Note 30.

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
Stage 1 Stage 1
Collective Collective
LAKm LAKm
Performing 529,711 1,704,432
529,711 1,704,432

A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024 1,704,432
New assets originated or purchased 72,669
Payments and assets derecognised (1,083,957)
Foreign exchange adjustment 82,687
Monetary gain/(loss) (246,020)
As at 31 December 2024 529,711

DEBT INSTRUMENTS MEASURES AT AMORTISED COST

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Bonds issued by the BOL 163,948 37,209
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (31) (5)
163,917 37,204

The term and interest rate of the bond issue by the BOL as at 31 December 2024 are as
follows:

Interest rate

Bond Term (% per annum)

Bonds issued by the BOL 12 months 5.00-5.50
The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch’s internal credit rating system and stage classification. The amounts presented are
gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Branch’s internal grading system are explained

in Note 30.
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17. DEBT INSTRUMENTS MEASURES AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

31/12/2024 31/12/2023

Stage 1 Stage 1

Collective Collective

LAKm LAKm

Performing 163,948 37,209
163,948 37,209

A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024 37,209
New assets originated or purchased 163,000
Payments and assets derecognised (31,838)
Accrue interest 948
Monetary gain/(loss) (5,371)
As at 31 December 2024 163,948

A reconciliation of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2023 5
Credit loss expense 27
Monetary gain/(loss) (1)
As at 31 December 2024 31

18. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Gross loans to Loans to customers 4,743,888 2,648,932
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (104,123) (86,720)
4,639,765 2,562,212
Interest rates for loans to customers during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
Interest rate Interest rate
% per annum % per annum
Loans denominated in LAK 5.75-10.08 6.50 - 11.00
Loans denominated in USD 2.24 -7.50 2.40-8.00
Loans denominated in CNY 2.20-4.80 3.50
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18. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Analysis of loans to customers

Analysis by currency

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKmM
Loans denominated in LAK 397,799 517,566
Loans denominated in USD 1,921,473 1,837,411
Loans denominated in CNY 2,424,616 293,955
4,743,888 2,648,932
Analysis by original term

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Short-term loans 893,535 433,596
Medium-term loans 3,244,973 1,356,763
Long-term loans 605,380 858,573
4,743,888 2,648,932

Analysis by economic sectors
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Industrial services companies 2,808,951 1,115,807
Construction companies 948,177 1,274,571
Agriculture companies 163,320 -
Trading companies 12,028 11,715
Service companies 94,624 177,729
Other loans 716,788 69,110
4,743,888 2,648,932
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18.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Impairment allowance for loans to customers

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch’s internal stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of allowances for

ECL.
31/12/2024
Stage 1
Collective Total
LAKm LAKm
Performing 4,743,888 4,743,888
4,743,888 4,743,888

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments under IFRS 9 for the year

ended 31 December 2023:

31/12/2023
Stage 1
Collective Total
LAKm LAKm
Performing 2,648,932 2,648,932
2,648,932 2,648,932
A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024 2,648,932
New assets originated or purchased 3,542,621
Derecognised or repaid (excluding written offs) (1,586,439)
Accrued interest 42,428
Foreign exchange adjustments 478,696
Monetary gain/(loss) (382,350)
As at 31 December 2024 4,743,888

A reconciliation of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2023 86,720
Credit loss expense 27,323
Foreign currency differences 2,597
Monetary gain/(loss) (12,517)
104,123

As at 31 December 2024
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19. LOAN TO PARENT BANK
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
Gross loans to parent bank 3,747,955 5,579,843
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (663) (520)
3,747,292 5,579,323

(*) Loans to parent bank have terms of ranging from 1 month to 12 months which earns

interest at the rate of ranging from 1.06% to 4.77% per annum.

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch’s internal stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of allowances for

ECL.
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
Stage 1 Stage 1
Collective Collective
LAKm LAKm
Performing
- Unrated/Overall 3,747,955 5,579,843
3,747,955 5,579,843
A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024 5,579,843
New assets originated or purchased 3,740,533
Derecognised or repaid (excluding written offs) (4,800,375)
Accrued interest 7,421
Foreign exchange adjustments 25,934
Monetary gain/(loss) (805,401)
As at 31 December 2024 3,747,955
A reconciliation of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2023 520
Credit loss expense (67)
Foreign currency differences 285
Monetary gain/(loss) (75)
As at 31 December 2024 663

39



oy

0l¥'6e £06'S 195°¢ (oz1) 86¥'S 681 -
698'8 0zZe'y 6vs‘y 1 443 Yo'y 161 -
(61£°68) (sie'er) (00°9%) (seg’9) (z6L'6L) (068°s) (v8s'vl)
(L2¥'9) (0ze'y) (£01'2) (F¥P) (6%5'1) L) s
(z68'28) (666'8€) (268'ch) (¥68'S) (e¥9'ZL) (922'S) (r8s'vl)
68.°86 8LZ'6Y LLG6¥ 81Z‘9 06922 6.0°9 ¥85‘vlL
820', £06'S GzZL'l ) £10'} Zll -
19216 sLe'sy ovy'sy 812'9 11912 196'G R
wyy wyy1 wyy7 wyy wyy wyy wyy1
eyl Buipjing [ejog sofolyeA Jojopy  juswdinbe salmxiy JustuaAosduwly
Jopnduwon ® ainjuinS Buipjing
noy sjasse paxiy) ajqibue |

¥20¢ lequiada( L€ Je sy
¥z0oz Aenuer | je sy

:anjeA %ooq }aN

¥20¢ 19aquisdsq | € 1e sY

Jeah sy} Jo} ebleyn
¥z0z Aenuer | je sy

:uonedasdsp pejenwnody

y20c J3quisde( 1L ¢ je sy

suonppy
$20¢C >._m3r_m_.. |l e sy
11509

:SMOJ|[0} SE 9JB $Z(0Z Joqwiadaq ¢ popua ay} Joj sjasse asn Jo Jybu pue Juswdinbs pue Auadoud Jo sjuswanop

S}9sSse (,,N10¥,,) 9sn-jo- Jo-pybly pue spasse paxij ajqibue]

S13SSV ISN-40-LHOIY ANV LNIINAIND3I ANV ALY¥IdONd

L'oe

‘0T

$20zZ Joquieda( L€ papua Jeak sy} 1o} pue e se
(penuiuod) SINIWILVLS TYIONYNIZ IHL OL S3LON

youeug auepualA “piq (Buoy BuoH) euiyn jo yueg



Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

21. OTHER ASSETS

31/12/2024 31/12/2023

LAKm LAKm

Others 1,787 1,152
1,787 1,152

22, DUE TO BANKS
31/12/2024 31/12/2023

Nominal Amortised Nominal Amortised
amount cost amount cost

LAKm LAKm LAKm LAKm

Demand deposits from domestic bank 578,044 578,044 615,942 719,845
Term deposit from domestic bank 41,104 41,679 38,325 45,416
Borrowing from financial institution 645,456 646,221 1,973,686 2,309,969

1,264,604 1,265,944 2,627,953 3,075,230

Details of the borrowings as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Nominal amount Amortised Interest rate

Nominal value in in LAKm costin LAKm % per

Currency Term  original currency equivalent equivalent annum
2 weeks to

UsD 1 months 41,000,000 575,456 575,993 4.70-4.72
3 weeks to

LAK 1 months 70,000,000,000 70,000 70,228 7.50-11.00

645,456 646,221

Details of the borrowings as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Nominal amount Amortised Interest rate

Nominal value in in LAKm costin LAKm % per

Currency Term  original currency equivalent equivalent annum
uUsD 1 months 103,000,000 1,973,686 2,309,969 5.35-5.87

1,973,686 2,309,969
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

23.

24.
241

DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits
Demand deposits in LAK
Demand deposits in FC

Saving deposits
Saving deposits in LAK
Saving deposits in FC
Fixed deposits

Fixed deposits in LAK
Fixed deposits in FC

The interest rates for these deposits are as follows:

Demand deposits in LAK
Demand deposits in foreign currencies

Saving deposits in LAK
Saving deposits in USD
Saving deposits in THB
Saving deposits in CNY

Term deposits in LAK
Term deposits in USD
Term deposits in THB
Term deposits in CNY
TAXATION

Current tax liabilities

Profit Tax payables
Deferred tax expense/(income)

42

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
561,188 649,999
4,051,543 3,545,235
26,054 29,037
353,136 498,630
4,604 5,076
7,762,777 7,844,293
12,759,302 12,572,270
2024 2023

Interest rate Interest rate

(% per annum)

(% per annum)

No interest No interest
No interest No interest
1.1 1.11

1.25 1.25

0.50 0.50

0.90 0.90
3.00-6.25 3.00-6.25
1.75-5.75 1.75-5.75
0.90-4.50 0.90-4.50
1.60-2.20 1.60-2.20
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
98,162 136,959
(738) 623
97,424 137,582




Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

24,

24.2

24.3

TAXATION (continued)
Profit Tax ("PT")
The Branch is obliged to pay profit tax at rate of 20% on total profit before tax of the year in

accordance with Tax Law No.67/NA dated 18 June 2019 which is effective on or after 1
January 2020.

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Profit before tax under IFRS 172,551 282,366
Add: Non-deductible expense 1,312 3,039
Temporary difference 3,419 1,728
Impact from IAS 29 not subject to CIT calculation 313,526 397,663
Taxable profit under IFRS 490,808 684,796
Current PT expense, at the statutory rate of 20% 98,162 136,959
PT (paid in advance)/payable at the beginning of
the year 17,298 17,877
PT paid during the year (81,972) (134,621)
PT Payable at the end of the year 33,488 20,215

The Branch’s tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the
application of tax laws and regulations in many types of transactions is susceptible to varying
interpretations, amounts reported in the financial statements could be changed at a later date
upon final determination by the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Statement of
Statement of financial comprehensive
position Income statement income
31/12/2024 31/12/2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
LAKm LAKm LAKm [AKm LAKm [LAKm
Deferred tax assets 684 346 388 66 - -
Deferred tax liabilities (185) (626) 350 557 - -

Net deferred tax
charged to the income
statement 738 623

Net deferred tax

credited to the

statement of

comprehensive income - -
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

24, TAXATION (continued)

24.3  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deductible temporary differences

Difference in allowance for impairment losses
between LAS and IFRS of balance with other
bank

Difference in allowance for impairment losses
between LAS and IFRS of debt instruments at
amortised cost

Difference in allowance for impairment losses
between LAS and IFRS of financial commitment

Deferred tax assets (at tax rate 20%)

Taxable temporary differences

In which:

Difference from property and equipment and
right- of-use assets in relation to IAS 29

Deferred tax liabilities (at tax rate 20%)

25. OTHER LIABILITIES

Payable to Bank of China Head Office
Payables to employees

Allowance for credit losses on financial
commitments

Others

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
3,419 1,728
1,999 1,724

31 5

1,389 -

684 346

(925) (3,129)

(925) (3,129)

(185) (626)
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm

- 62,117

14,972 20,118
1,389 12,125
21,446 42,742
37,807 137,102

Letters of credit and guarantees commit the Branch to make payments on behalf of customers
in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods. Guarantees
and standby letters of credit carry a similar credit risk to loans. The nominal values of such

commitments are listed below:

Financial guarantees
Corporate loan commitment

44

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
LAKm LAKm
1,196,487 1,307,630
745,402 2,075,066
1,941,889 3,382,696




Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

25,

26.

OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Branch's internal stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of allowances for
ECL.

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
Stage 1 Stage 1
Collective Collective
LAKm LAKm

Performing
- Unrated/Overall 1,941,889 3,382,696
1,941,889 3,382,696

A reconciliation of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2024 3,382,696
New assets originated or purchased 77,602
Derecognised or repaid (excluding written offs) (1,030,146)
Monetary gain/(loss) (488,263)
As at 31 December 2024 1,941,889
A reconciliation of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:
Stage 1
Collective
LAKm
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2023 12,125
Net ECL charge (9,388)
Foreign currency differences 402
Monetary gain/(loss) (1,750)
As at 31 December 2024 1,389
PAID-UP CAPITAL
The movement of paid-up capital during the year is presented below:
2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Opening balance 405,100 405,100
Additional contribution during the year = -
Adjustment to Paid-up capital in relation to IAS 29 400,206 400,206
Closing balance 805,306 805,306

In accordance with Law on Commercial Banks No. 89/NA issued by the National Assembly on
17 July 2023 with the effective date on 15 September 2023, all foreign branches in Lao PDR
are required to increase their charter capital to meet the minimum charter capital of LAKm
600,000. The Branch is in the progress of getting further guidance from the BOL on the
timeframe of additional capital contribution, which is expected to be released in 2025.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

27.

28.

ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2024 31/12/2023

LAKm LAKm

Cash on hand 52,887 120,956
Current accounts with the BOL 1,755,823 1,257,443
Current accounts with other banks 529,707 1,704,420
2,338,417 3,082,819

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions include all transactions undertaken with other parties to which the
Branch is related. A party is related to the Branch if:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

» controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Branch (this includes
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

» has an interest in the Branch that gives it significant influence over the Branch; or
» has joint control over the Branch.
(b) the party is a joint venture in which the Branch is a venture;
(c) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Branch or its parent;
(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or
for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the

Branch, or of any entity that is a related party of the Branch.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024
28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Significant balances with related parties as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:
31/12/2024  31/12/2023

Receivable/ Receivable/
(Payable) (Payable)

Related party Relationship Transactions LAKm LAKm

Bank of China (Hong

Kong) Limited Parent bank Demand deposit 281,841 1,396,102
Borrowing (675,993) (2,309,969)
Lending 3,747,292 5,579,323

Bank of China, Head

Office Affiliate Demand deposit 34,892 76,934

Other payable - (62,117)
Term deposit - -

Bank of China Limited,

Shanghai RMB Trading

Unit Affiliate Demand deposit 175,080 133,608
Term deposit - -

Bank of China (Thai)

Public Company Limited  Affiliate Demand deposit 6,034 69,411
Bank of China Shanghai
Branch Affiliate Demand deposit 144 160
Bank of China Frankfurt
Branch Affiliate Demand deposit 973 256

Significant transactions with related parties during the year 2024 were as follows:

2024 2023
LAKm LAKm
Net increase/(decrease) in deposit at other Bank of
China branches:
- Demand deposit at Bank of China (Hongkong) Limited (1,114,261) 1,131,927
- Borrowing at Bank of China (Hongkong) Limited (1,733,976) 3,475,791
- Lending at Bank of China (Hongkong) Limited (1,832,031) (545,775)
- Demand deposit at Bank of China, Head office (42,042) (10,729)
- Other payable at Bank of China, Head office 62,117 (8,133)
- Demand deposit at Bank of China, Shanghai RMB
Trading Unit 41,472 119,561
8emand de_po.sit at Bank of China (Thai) Public (63,377) (14,499)
ompany Limited
Demand deposit at Bank of China Shanghai Branch (16) 21
Demand deposit at Bank of China Frankfurt Branch 717 131
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

28,

29,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Transactions with key management personnel of the Branch

Remuneration to members of the Board of Management is as follows:

2024 2023

LAKm LAKm

Salaries 13,450 9,595
13,450 9,595

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Branch’s activities and is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Branch’'s continuing profitability and each
individual within the Branch is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsibilities.

The Branch is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided
into trading and non-trading risks. It is also subject to various operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment, technology and industry. The Branch's policy is to monitor those business risks
through the Branch’s strategic planning process.

Risk management structure

The Management is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving
the risk management strategies and principles.

The Management has appointed the Risk - Compliance Officer which has the responsibility to
monitor the overall risk process within the Branch.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

29.

30.

30.1

30.2

30.2.1

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)
Risk management structure (continued)

The Risk - Compliance Officer has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk
strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk — Compliance
Officer is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to the
Board of Management.

The Branch follows Head Office’s risk management policy and risk management processes
throughout the Branch are audited annually by the Internal Audit function of Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited , which examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Branch's
compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessments with
management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee of Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that the Branch incurs a loss because its customers or counterparties
fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Branch manages and controls credit risk by
setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for
geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such
limits.

The Branch has established credit quality review processes to provide early identification of
possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties. Counterparty limits are
established through the use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each
counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to monthly revision. The credit quality
review process aims to allow the Branch to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to
which it is exposed and take corrective action.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Branch makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Branch
make payments on their behalf and enter into commitments to extend credit lines to secure
their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees commit the Branch to make payments
on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export
of goods. Such commitments expose the Branch to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by
the same control processes and policies.

Impairment assessment

The references below show where the Branch's impairment assessment and measurement
approach is set out in this report. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of
significant accounting policies.

Definition of default, impaired and cure

The Branch considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired)
for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its
contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Branch considers
a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the
Branch carefully consider whether the event should result in treating the customer as
defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is
appropriate. Such events include:
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

30.

30.2

30.2.1

3022

CREDIT RISK (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
Definition of default, impaired and cure (continued)

Observed impaired evidences, such as difficulties in financial affairs, forbearance and
bankruptcy etc.

The Branch’s internal rating and probability of default estimation process

The Branch operates its internal rating models which incorporate both qualitative and
quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise
supplemental external information that could affect the borrower's behaviour. These
information sources are first used to determine the PDs within the Branch’s Basel II
framework. The internal credit grades are assigned based on these Basel Il grades. PDs are
then adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking information and the
IFRS 9 Stage classification of the exposure. This is repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate.

Treasury, trading and interbank relationships

The Branch’s treasury, trading and interbank relationships and counterparties comprise
financial services institutions, banks, broker-dealers, exchanges and clearing-houses. For
these relationships, the Branch’s credit risk department analyses publicly available
information such as financial information and other external data, e.g., the rating of Moody’s,
S&P, Fitch, and assigns the internal rating.

Corporate lending

For corporate loans, the borrowers are assessed by specialised credit risk employees of the
Branch. The credit risk assessment is based on a credit scoring model that takes into account
various historical, current and forward-looking information such as:

» Historical financial information together with forecasts and budgets prepared by the client.
This financial information includes realised and expected results, solvency ratios, liquidity
ratios and any other relevant ratios to measure the client’s financial performance. Some
of these indicators are captured in covenants with the clients and are, therefore,
measured with greater attention.

» Any publicly available information on the clients from external parties. This includes
external rating grades issued by rating agencies, independent analyst reports or press
releases and articles.

» Any macro-economic or geopolitical information, e.g., GDP growth relevant for the
specific industry and geographical segments where the client operates.

» Any other objectively supportable information on the quality and abilities of the client’s
management relevant for the company’s performance.

The complexity and granularity of the rating techniques varies based on the exposure of the
Branch and the complexity and size of the customer.

Below tables summarized the results of predicted 12M PD of overseas group in corporate
loan portfolio after forward-looking adjustment.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

30.

30.2

CREDIT RISK (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

30.2.2 The Branch’s internal rating and probability of defaulf estimation process (continued)

12M PiT PD by grade and S&P ratings

Final 12m Final 12m
PD  Equivalent PD Equivalent

Grade Name (Avg)_2024 S&P Grade Grade Name (Avg) 2024 S&P Grade

1A 0.010 AAA 5E 1.541 BB-

2A 0.020 AA+ 5F 2.030 BB-

2B 0.030 AA 6A 2.669 B+

2C 0.040 AA- 6B 3.510 B+

3A 0.050 A+ 6C 4.620 B

3B 0.070 A 6D 6.080 B

3C 0.090 A- 6E 8.005 B-

4A 0.130 BBB+ 6F 10.540 B-

4B 0.220 BBB 6G 13.770 B-

4C 0.390 BBB- 7A 18.000 CcCC

5A 0.510 BB+ 7B 24.000 cc

5B 0.670 BB+ 7C 33.000 Cc

5C 0.885 BB 8 100.000 D

5D 1.170 BB-

30.2.3 Exposure at default

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to
increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Branch assesses the possible default events
within 12 months for the calculation of the 12ZmECL. However, if a Stage 1 loan that is
expected to default in the 12 months from the balance sheet date and is also expected to cure
and subsequently default again, then all linked default events are taken into account. For
Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events
over the lifetime of the instruments.

The Branch determines EADs by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at
various points in time, corresponding the multiple scenarios. The IFRS 9 PDs are then
assigned to each economic scenario based on the outcome of Branch's models.

30.2.4 Loss given default

For corporate and investment banking financial instruments, LGD values are assessed
periodically by account managers and reviewed and approved by the Branch’s specialised
credit risk department. The credit risk assessment is based on a standardised LGD
assessment framework that results in a certain LGD rate. These LGD rates take into account
the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected to be recovered or realised from
any collateral held.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

30.

30.2

30.2.4

30.2.5

CREDIT RISK (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
Loss given default (continued)

Further recent data and forward-looking economic scenarios are used in order to determine
the IFRS 9 LGD rate for each group of financial instruments. When assessing forward-looking
information, the expectation is based on multiple scenarios. Examples of key inputs involve
changes in, collateral values including property prices for mortgages, commodity prices,
payment status or other factors that are indicative of losses in the group. The Branch
estimates regulatory and IFRS 9 LGDs on a different basis. Under IFRS 9, LGD rates are
estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI IFRS 9 segment of each asset class.
The inputs for these LGD rates are estimated and, where possible, calibrated through back
testing against recent recoveries. These are repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Branch continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether
an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Branch
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Branch applies criteria of the staging mechanism were based on the change of credit
rating grade in the internal rating system, days-past-due information and the loan
classification flag etc.

Accordingly, the Branch considers the following Indicators as significant increase in credit risk

» [ndicators compared information on initial recognition date and reporting date, such as
the change of rating grades (MSR) and borrower’s financial status etc.

MSR rating on initial MSR rating STAGE on reporting
recognition date on reporting date date

9 W1, W2 1

w1 w2 1

» Supporting indicators on reporting date, such as overdue days (30-89 days), block-code
flag etc.

» Other static information that shows borrower’s credit risk significantly increased.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

31.

32.

INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates in 1 year, with all other variables held constant, of the Branch’s income statement:

Unit: LAKm
2024 2023

Impact on profit before tax Impact on profit before tax
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
increase 1 decrease 1 increase 1 decrease 1
percentage percentage percentage percentage
point point point point
Assets 39,085 (39,085) 42,140 (42,140)
Liabilities (38,825) 38,825 (25,762) 25,762
Total 260 (260) 16,378 (16,378)

CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk exposed to the Branch due to changes in foreign exchange rates
which adversely impact the Branch’s foreign currency positions. The Branch has set limits on
positions by currency, based on its internal risk assessment system and the BOL’s
regulations. Positions are monitored on a daily basis to ensure positions are maintained within

the established limits.

Breakdown of assets and liabilities which has been converted into LAKm 31 December 2024

is as follows:

ASSETS

Cash and balances with the
BOL (*)

Due from banks (*)

Debt instrument at amortized
cost

Loans to customers (*)

Loans to parent bank (*)

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Due to Banks
Due to customers

Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET EXPOSURE

UsD CNY Other Total

in LAKm in LAKm in LAKm in LAKm

LAKm equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
505,608 5,863,687 695,287 176,724 7,241,206

- 225,108 292,349 12,254 529,711

163,948 - - - 163,948
397,799 1,921,473 2,424,616 - 4,743,888

- 740,490 2,790,494 216,971 3,747,955

1,067,255 8,750,758 6,202,746 405,949 16,426,708
210,233 740,478 315,233 - 1,265,944
591,947 5,841,583 5,910,419 415,353 12,759,302
(1,835,910) 1,834,596 42,854 (3,733) 37,807
(1,033,730) 8,416,657 6,268,506 411,620 14,063,053
2,100,985 334,101 (65,760) (5,671) 2,363,655

(*) These do not include provision and unrealized gain.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

32.

33.

CURRENCY RISK (continued)
Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Branch had significant exposure at 31
December on its monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The analysis
calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the exchange rate against the Lao
Kip, with all other variables held constant, on the income statement (due to the fair value of
currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities). A negative amount in the table reflects a
potential net reduction in the income statement, while a positive amount reflects a net potential
increase.

Unit: LAKm
2024 2023
Impact on profit before tax Impact on profit before tax

Exchange rate Exchange rate Exchange rate Exchange rate
increase 10% decrease 10% increase 10% decrease 10%

usD 664 (664) 188,712 (188,712)
THB 33,864 (33,864) 6,517 (6,517)
Total 34,528 (34,528) 195,229 (195,229)
LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Branch will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Branch might be unable
to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress
circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources in
addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Branch has
developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This
incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The following assumptions and conditions are applied in the liquidity risk analysis of the
Branch’s financial assets and liabilities:

» Deposits at the BOL are classified as demand deposits which include compulsory
deposits. The balance of compulsory deposits depends on the proportion and terms of
the Branch’s customer deposits.

» The maturity terms of placements with and loans to other banks; and loans to customers
are determined on the maturity dates as stipulated in contracts. The actual maturity terms
may be altered because loan contracts may be extended.

» The maturity terms of deposits from other banks; and customer’s deposits are determined
based on features of these items or the maturity date as stipulated in contracts. Demand
deposits are transacted as required by customers and therefore being classified as
current accounts. The maturity terms of deposits are determined based on the maturity
dates in contracts. In fact, these amounts may be rotated and therefore may last beyond
the original maturity date.

» The maturity terms of other liabilities are determined based on the actual maturity term of
each other liability.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

34.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Branch maintains minimum regulatory capital in accordance with Regulation No.
536/BFSD/BOL dated 14 October 2009 on commercial banks’ capital adequacy and other
detailed guidance. The primary objectives of the Branch’s capital management are to ensure
that the Branch complies with externally imposed capital requirements by the BOL. The
Branch recognizes the need to maintain effectiveness of assets and liabilities management
to balance profit and capital adequacy.

In accordance with Regulation No. 536/BFSD/BOL, the Branch's regulatory capital is
analyzed into two tiers:

» Tier 1 capital, which includes chartered capital, regulatory reserve fund, business
expansion fund and other funds, and retained earnings;

» Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities, general provisions and
the element of fair value reserve relating to unrealized gains/losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale.

Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base: qualifying tier 2 cannot exceed tier
1 capital, and qualifying subordinated liabilities may not exceed 50 percent of tier 1 capital.

An analysis of the Branch's capital based on financial information deprived from IFRS financial
statements is as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

under IFRS under IFRS
ltems LAKm LAKm
Tier 1 capital 2,216,647 1,839,070
Tier 2 capital 67,344 120,850
Total capital 2,283,991 1,959,920
Less: Deductions from capital (Investments in
other credit and financial institutions) > =
Capital for CAR calculation (A) 2,283,991 1,959,920
Risk weighted balance sheet items 3,279,548 2,381,783
Risk weighted off balance sheet items 111,097 455,755
Total risk weighted assets (B) 3,390,645 2,837,538
Capital Adequacy Ratio (A/B) 67% 69%
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

35.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Branch uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted prices/(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The Branch has no financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 December
2024. Therefore, there is no analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of
the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The Branch uses the following methodologies and assumptions to determine fair value for
financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value on the financial statements:

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than one year)
it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is
also applied to demand deposits.

Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value is determined using discounted cash flows using interest at year end of financial
instruments in the market with similar risk and maturity. In addition, the Branch assumes that
loans to customers are held to maturity. Fair values of loans to customers are determined as
the carrying value less impairment losses. For Due to customers, fair value is approximated
based on the carrying value of deposits, except for the fair value of fixed rate items with
remaining maturity period greater than 1 year which is calculated based on the present value
of future cash flows of principal and interest, discounted at interest rates currently being
offered on such deposits.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

35.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the
Branch's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements:

As at 31 December 2024

. Fair value
Carmrying
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Cash and balances
with Bank of the Lao
PDR 7,241,206 7,241,206 - - 7,241,206
Due from banks 529,711 529,711 - - 529,711
Loans and advances
to customers 4,743,888 - - 4,743,888 4,743,888
Loan to parent bank 3,747,955 - - 3,747,955 3,747,955
Financial investments
- Held to maturity 163,948 - - 163,948 163,948

16,426,708 7,770,917 - 8,655,791 16,426,708
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 1,265,944 - - 1,265,944 1,265,944
Due to customers 12,759,302 - - 12,759,302 12,759,302

14,025,246 - - 14,025,246 14,025,246
As at 31 December 2023

. Fair value
Carrying
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Cash and balances
with Bank of the Lao
PDR 8,073,608 8,073,608 - - 8,073,608
Due from banks 1,704,432 1,704,432 - - 1,704,432
Loans and advances
to customers 2,648,932 - - 2,648,932 2,648,932
Loan to parent bank 5,579,843 - - 5,579,843 5,579,843
Financial investments
- Held to maturity 37,209 = - 37,209 37,209

18,044,024 9,778,040 - 8,265,984 18,044,024
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 3,075,230 - - 3,075,230 3,075,230
Due to customers 12,572,269 - - 12,572,269 12,572,269

15,647,499 - - 15,647,499 15,647,499
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd., Vientiane Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024

36. EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST LAK AT
REPORTING DATE

31/12/2024 31/12/2023

LAK LAK

United State Dollar (*USD") 20,552.00 19,162.00
Thai baht (“THB") 602.00 561.61
Chinese Yuan (“CNY?) 2,812.00 2,702.00

37. EVENTS AFTER STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
There is no matter or circumstance that has arisen since 31 December 2024 that requires

adjustment or disclosure to be made in the financial statements of the Branch.

Prepared by:

e

Mr. Zhou Junyh
Financial Management and
Operation Service Unit Manager

Vientiane, Lao PDR

30 May 2025
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